10.

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION
May 4, 2021, via virtual meeting
6:30 pm
Agenda

Adoption of Agenda

Minutes

a. |Meeting Minutes of April 6, 2021

Closed Meeting Session
Unfinished Business - Nil

Development Permit Applications

a. | Development Permit Application No. 2021-20

Kenny Olson & Shelly Olson, Kjell Anderson, Alexis Hagg, Doug Rawling and Robin Rawling
NW 24-9-3 W5M

Secondary Farm Residence

Tmit Application No. 2021-22
Scott and Sarah Baillie

Lot 7, Block 4, Plan No. 961 0758

Accessory Building (Detached Garage)

c. | Development Permit Application No. 2021-25
Linda Ykema

Lots 1-3, Block 14, Plan No. 2177S
Singlewide Manufactured Home Replacement

d. |Development Permit Application No. 2021-29

Stone Development Inc.

Lot 98, Block 4, Plan 051 3736, 427 & 428 Starlight Way, Castle Mountain Resort
Duplex

Development Reports

a.| Development Officer’s Report
- Report for the month of April 2021

Correspondence

Nil

New Business

Next Regular Meeting — June 1, 2021; 6:30 pm

Adjournment



Meeting Minutes of the
Municipal Planning Commission
April 6, 2021 6:30 pm, via Virtual Meeting
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 Administration Building
ATTENDANCE

Commission: Chairman Jim Welsch, Reeve Brian Hammond, Terry Yagos, Bev Everts, Rick Lemire,
Quentin Stevick

Staff: Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, Financial Services and
Planning Clerk Joyce Mackenzie-Grieve

Planning
Advisors: ORRSC, Senior Planner Gavin Scott

Absent: CAO Troy MacCulloch

Chairman Jim Welsch called the meeting to order, the time being 6:30 pm.

l. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
Councillor Quentin Stevick 21/025
Moved that the agenda be approved as presented.
Carried
2. ADOPTION OF MINUTES
Councillor Bev Everts 21/026

Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for March 2, 2021 be approved as

presented.
Carried
3. ADOPTION OF SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Reeve Brian Hammond 21/027

Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission Special Meeting Minutes for March 15, 2021 be
approved as presented.

Carried



MINUTES
Municipal Planning Commission (MPC)
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
April 6,2021
Councillor Rick Lemire 21/028
Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission Special Meeting Minutes for March 19, 2021 be
approved as presented,
Carried
CLOSED MEETING SESSION
Councillor Terry Yagos 21/029

Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission close the meeting to the public, under the
authority of the Municipal Government Act, Section 197(2.1), the time being 6:33 pm.

Carried

Councillor Quentin Stevick 21/030

Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission open the meeting to the public, the time being 6:53 pm.
Carried

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business to discuss.

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS
a. Development Permit Application No. 2021-13
Pincher Creek Seed Cleaning Cooperative Ltd.
Lots 1 thru 6, block 5, Plan 1993N, Hamlet of Pincher Station
Shipping Container
Reeve Brian Hammond 21/031
Moved that Development Permit No. 2021-13, for a Shipping Container be approved as presented:
Condition(s):

1. That this development meets the minimum provisions as required in Land Use Bylaw 1289-18.

2. That pursuant to Section 58.7 of the LUB, shipping containers shall be painted the color(s) of
the principal building or to the satisfaction of the Development Authority.

Carried



MINUTES
Municipal Planning Commission (MPC)
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
April 6, 2021

b. Development Permit Application No. 2021-15
Lueas, Richard
Lot 1, Block 20, Plan 201 2008 within SW 10-6-2 W5M
Intensive Horticulture Use (Mushroom Farm)

Reeve Brian Hammond 21/032

Moved that Development Permit No. 2021-15, for an Intensive Horticulture Use (Mushroom Farm)
be approved as presented:

Condition(s):
1. That this development meets the minimum provisions as required in Land Use Bylaw 1289-18.
2. The applicant shall provide a copy of any license required by Federal (Canadian Food

Inspection Agency) or Provincial (Alberta Agriculture and forestry) that may be required for
operation of the facility.

3. That the applicant provide verification from Alberta Environment & Parks that the water well
license, proposed to be used for the development, allows for Commercial Use.

Carried
7. DEVELOPMENT REPORT
a. Development Officer’s Report
Councillor Bev Eveerts 21/033

Moved that the Development Officer’s Report, for the period March 2021, be received as
information.
Carried
8. CORRESPONDENCE
Nil
9. NEW BUSINESS

None

10. NEXT MEETING — May 4, 2021; 6:30 pm.



11.

MINUTES
Municipal Planning Commission (MPC)
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
April 6, 2021

ADJOURNMENT
Councillor Terry Yagos 21/034

Moved that the meeting adjourn, the time being 7:02 pm.

Carried
Chairperson Jim Welsch Director of Development and Community
Municipal Planning Commission Services Roland Milligan

Municipal Planning Commission





















Attachment No. 1

IMPORTANT NOTES:

THE DEVELOPMENT OFFICER MAY REFUSE TO ACCEPT AN APPLICATION

FOR A DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WHERE THE INFORMATION REQUIRED HAS

NOT BEEN SUPPLIED OR WHERE THE QUALITY OF SUCH INFORMATION IS
INADEQUATE TO PROPERLY EVALUATE THE APPLICATION.

1.

In addition to completing this application form in its entirety, an application for a
development permit shall be accompanied by the following information, where relevant:

(a) alot plan at scale to the satisfaction of the Development Officer showing the size and
shape of the lot, the front, rear and side yards, any provision for off-street loading and
vehicle parking, access to the site, and the location of public utility lines, waterbodies
and treed areas;

(b) ascaled floor plan and elevations where construction is proposed;

(c) at the discretion of the Development Officer, a Real Property Report as proof of
location of existing development and a copy of the Duplicate Certificate of Title
indicating ownership and encumbrances;

(d) if the applicant is not the registered owner, a written statement, signed by the registered
owner consenting to the application and approving the applicant as the agent for the
registered owner.

A non-refundable processing fee of an amount determined by Council shall accompany
every application for a development permit,

Failure to complete the application form fully and supply the required information, plans
and fee may cause delays in processing the application.

All development permits shall contain the following informative:

“ANY DEVELOPMENT CARRIED OUT PRIOR TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF
THE APPROPRIATE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT IS DONE SOLELY AT THE RISK
OF THE APPLICANT AND/OR LANDOWNER.”

In accordance with the Municipal Government Act, a development authority must, within
20 days after the receipt of an application for a development permit, determine whether the
application is complete.

A decision on a completed application must be made within 40 days. After the 40-day
period the applicant may deem the application refused and file an appeal within 21 days, of
the expiry of the decision date.

Every approach to a residence is entitled to a civic address sign, supplied by the
municipality. If your location does not already have a sign, please contact the MD
Administration Office to make arrangements as soon as your approach has been constructed.

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 Page 4 of 4









Recommendation to Municipal Planning Commission

- An aerial of the location is included as Affachment No. 2.

- The applicant has supplied a letter (Attachment No. 3) to outline the reasons of why they are
requesting a variance. The existing driveway travels along the base of the hill that makes up the
largest portion of the lot. The applicant states that they cannot dig into the base of the hill to
develop the garage. The proposed location leaves enough room for a parking pad adjacent to the
driveway and maintaining access to the residence, without relocating the driveway.

- The application was forwarded to the adjacent landowners for comment, one response was received
prior to preparing this report (Aftachment No. 5). The main concern cited in the submission is the
wetland area shown on the site plan (Attachment No. 2). “The proposed garage location will
encroach upon an existing wetland area. Maintaining the required front setback will mean less
infill will be required, as the location will be farther from the low lying wetland area at the front of
the property.”

- In speaking with another adjacent landowner, I was informed that “wetland” adjacent to the road is
an artificial wetland constructed by a previous landowner. I have included the Alberta Environment
and Parks mapping (Attachment No. 4) to show where the provincially mapped wetland area on the
lot is. The development is well outside the area shown on provincial mapping.

- As the application is for a variance from a municipal road, the application was forwarded to Public
Works for comment also. After preforming a site inspection on Wednesday the 28th, the Public
Works Superintendent states, “from looking at this and [ have absolutely no issue with the setback
variance.”

Presented to: Municipal Planning Commission Page 2 of 3
Date of Meeting: February 2, 2021





































Recommendation to Municipal Planning Commission

- This application is being placed in front of the MPC because:
- Within the Hamlet Residential 2 — HR2 Land Use District, Singlewide Manufactured Home is a
Discretionary Use.

- The proposed location for the residence meets all setback requirements of the land use district.

- This area of the Hamlet has many singlewide manufactured homes as the primary use. Four of the
adjacent parcels are developed with manufactured homes.

- The application was forwarded to the adjacent landowners for comment. At the time of preparing
this report one response was received, with the respondent stating that they had no issues with the
proposed development.

Presented to: Municipal Planning Commission Page 2 of 3
Date of Meeting: May 4, 2021







LAND TITLE CERTIFICATE

S
LINC SHORT LEGAL TITLE NUMBER
0034 468 1le6 5;1;5;22;NW 101 291 248

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

MERIDIAN 5 RANGE 1 TOWNSHIP 5
SECTION 22

QUARTER NORTH WEST

CONTAINING 160 ACRES MORE OR LESS
EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

PLAN NUMBER HECTARES ACRES MORE OR LESS
ROAD 1586JK 2.72
DESCRIPTIVE 1013364 3.83 9.46

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS
AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

ESTATE: FEE SIMPLE

MUNICIPALITY: MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

REFERENCE NUMBER: 101 267 041 +1

REGISTERED OWNER (S)
REGISTRATION DATE (DMY) DOCUMENT TYPE VALUE CONSIDERATION

SEE INSTRUMENT

JEFFREY JAMES MARCEL DEJAX

ENCUMBRANCES, LIENS & INTERESTS

REGISTRATION
NUMBER DATE (D/M/Y) PARTICULARS
3336CU . 31/10/1922 EASEMENT

"SUBJECT TO, IN FAVOUR OF THE SE OF 27"

{ CONTINUED )



LAND TITLE CERTIFICATE

S
LINC SHORT LEGAL TITLE NUMBER
0034 468 116 5;1;5;22;NW 101 291 249

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

MERIDIAN 5 RANGE 1 TOWNSHIP 5
SECTION 22

QUARTER NORTH WEST

CONTAINING 160 ACRES MORE OR LESS
EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

PLAN NUMBER HECTARES ACRES MORE OR LESS
ROAD 1586JK 2.72
DESCRIPTIVE 1013364 3.83 9.46

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS
AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

ESTATE: FEE SIMPLE

MUNICIPALITY: MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

REFERENCE NUMBER: 101 267 041 +1

REGISTERED OWNER(S)

REGISTRATION DATE (DMY) DOCUMENT TYPE VALUE CONSIDERATION
OWNERS

JEFFREY JAMES MARCEL DEJAX

ENCUMBRANCES, LIENS & INTERESTS

REGISTRATION
NUMBER DATE (D/M/Y) PARTICULARS
3336CU . 31/10/1922 EASEMENT

"SUBJECT TO, IN FAVOUR OF THE SE OF 27"

( CONTINUED )












Attachment No. 1

IMPORTANT NOTES:

THE DEVELOPMENT OFFICER MAY REFUSE TO ACCEPT AN APPLICATION
FOR A DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WHERE THE INFORMATION REQUIRED HAS
NOT BEEN SUPPLIED OR WHERE THE QUALITY OF SUCH INFORMATION IS
INADEQUATE TO PROPERLY EVALUATE THE APPLICATION.

. In addition to completing this application form in its entirety, an application for a
development permit shall be accompanied by the following information, where relevant:

(a) alot plan at scale to the satisfaction of the Development Officer showing the size and
shape of the lot, the front, rear and side yards, any provision for off-street loading and
vehicle parking, access to the site, and the location of public utility lines, waterbodies
and treed areas;

(b) a scaled floor plan and elevations where construction is proposed;

(c) at the discretion of the Development Officer, a Real Property Report as proof of
location of existing development and a copy of the Duplicate Certificate of Title
indicating ownership and encumbrances;

(d) if the applicant is not the registered owner, a written statement, signed by the registered
owner consenting to the application and approving the applicant as the agent for the
registered owner.

2. A non-refundable processing fee of an amount determined by Council shall accompany
every application for a development permit.

3. TFailure to complete the application form fully and supply the required information, plans
and fee may cause delays in processing the application.

4, All development permits shall contain the following informative:

“ANY DEVELOPMENT CARRIED OUT PRIOR TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF
THE APPROPRIATE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT IS DONE SOLELY AT THE RISK
OF THE APPLICANT AND/OR LANDOWNER."”

5. In accordance with the Municipal Government Act, a development authority must, within
20 days after the receipt of an application for a development permit, determine whether the
application is complete.

A decision on a completed application must be made within 40 days. After the 40-day
period the applicant may deem the application refused and file an appeal within 21 days, of
the expiry of the decision date.

6. Every approach to a residence is entitled to a civic address sign, supplied by the

municipality. If your location does not already have a sign, please contact the MD
Administration Office to make arrangements as soon as your approach has been constructed.

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 Page 4 of 4









Recommendation to Municipal Planning Commission

- The southeast corner of the proposed duplex will require a 0.57 meter variance of the 2.50 meter
rear yard setback. This is a 2.5% variance that normally is allowable for the Development Officer
to grant if there would be no negative impact on the adjacent parcels.
- The main setback variance required/requested is the second storey deck. The corner post for the
deck is located 0.061 meters from the rear of the lot.
- This application is being placed in front of the MPC because:
- Pursuant to Section 18.17 the Development Officer cannot issue a permit for a variance greater
than 10 percent on setback distances pertaining to public roadways, and further; the Municipal
Planning Commission is authorized to exercise minor variance powers with respect to non-
conforming buildings pursuant to Section 643(5)(c) of the MGA.
- Both the Castle Mountain Development Committee and Castle Mountain Resort have approved the
proposed location (Attachments No. 2 and No. 3).
- The application was forwarded to the adjacent landowners for comment. CMR has no concerns
with the proposal as they feel they is no development potential on their land directly adjacent.
- At the time of preparing this report no other response were yet received.

Presented to: Municipal Planning Commission Page 2 of 3
Date of Meeting: February 2, 2021
















IMPORTANT NOTES:

1. In addition to completing this application form in its entirety, an application for a development permit
shalt be accompanied by the following information, where relevant:

(a) alotplan at scale to the satisfaction of the Development Officer showing the size and shape of
the lot, the front, rear and side yards, any provision for off-street loading and vehicle parking,
access to the site, and the location of public utility lines, waterbodies and treed areas;

(b) a scaled floor plan and elevations where construction is proposed;

(c) at the discretion of the Development Officer, a Real Property Report as proof of location of
existing development and a copy of the Duplicate Certificate of Title indicating ownership and
encumbrances;

(d) if the applicant is not the registered owner, a written statement, signed by the registered owner
consenting to the application and approving the applicant as the agent for the registered owner.

2. A non-refundable processing fee of an amount determined by Council shail accompany every
application for a development permit.

4. THE DEVELOPMENT OFFICER MAY REFUSE TO ACCEPT AN APPLICATION FOR A DEVELOPMENT
PERMIT WHERE THE INFORMATION REQUIRED HAS NOT BEEN SUPPLIED OR WHERE THE QUALITY
OF SUCH INFORMATION IS INADEQUATE TO PROPERLY EVALUATE THE APPLICATION.

5.  All development permits shall contain the following informative:

“ANY DEVELOPMENT CARRIED OUT PRIOR TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE
APPROPRIATE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT IS DONE SOLELY AT THE RISK OF THE APPLICANT
AND/OR LANDOWNER.”

6. In accordance with the Municipal Government Act, a decision on a completed application must be
made within 40 days. After the 40-day period the applicant may deem the application refused and
file an appeal within 14 days of the expiry of the decision date.

7. Every approach to a residence is entitled to an approach number sign supplied by the municipality. If
your location does not already have a sign, please contact the MD Administration Office to make
arrangements as soon as your approach has been constructed.

Municipal District of Pincher Creek, No. 9 Appendix B
Land Use Bylaw 1140-08




































DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES REPORT

April 2021

Development / Community Services Activities includes:

e Aprill Recycling Bin Meeting
e April 6 Planning Session
e April6 Subdivision Meeting/MPC Meeting
e April7 ASB Meeting
e April 8 Dam Safety Regulatory Upgrades — Compliance Planning
e April 12 Transfer Station Meeting
e April 12 SMT Meeting
e April 13 Council Committee Meeting / Council Meeting
e April 14 SMT Meeting
e April 19 Vertical Church Meeting (facility use)
e April 27 Council Committee Meeting / Council Meeting
e April 28 CNP Landfill Meeting
e April 28 AES Interviews
PLANNING DEPARTMENT STATISTICS
Development Permits Issued by the Director for April 2021
No. Applicant Division Legal Address Development
2021-21 Field, Monica & McIntyre, 5 SW 1-8-3 W5M Accessory Building (Shop 20 x
Dave 8001 Rge. Rd. 3-0A 28°)
Lot 64 Block 3 Plan 0012472 |Single Detached Residence
2021-22 [Miller, Trevor 5 |64 Twilight Rise CMR w/attached garage and deck
Lots 1 to 8, Block 2, Plan
2021-23 |Oldman River Brewing 5  R177S Covered Patio
Space 1, Lundbreck Mobile
2021-26 |Susanne Chermishnuk 5 |Park Manufactured Home Replacement
Space 15, Lundbreck Mobile
2021-27 |Linda Ykema 5 |Park Manufactured Home Replacement
Development Permits Issued by Municipal Planning Commission April 2021
2021-13 | Pincher Creek Seed Cleaning 2 1605 Short Street Shipping Container
Intensive Horticulture Use
2021-15 | Lucas, Richard 3 |Lot1, Block 20, Plan 2012008 |(Mushroom Farm)









